Regular Meeting
Monday, October 18, 2021
6:00 pm
Chowan County Public Safety Center
305 West Freemason Street

This meeting was recorded. A copy of the recording is in the meeting file labeled October 18,
2021.

Present Chair Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Chris Evans, Tray Taylor, Alex Kehayes, Larry
McLaughlin, Ron Cummings and Ellis Lawrence.

Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard, Finance Officer Cathy Smith and Board Clerk
Susanne Stallings.

Regular Meeting
Chair Kirby called the regular meeting to order and led all in the pledge of allegiance.

Commissioner Cummings then offered the invocation.

Approval of Agenda
Ms. Stallings noted a request to amend the agenda to add item 5a, Walker Gym HVAC bids.

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the agenda as amended. Chair Kirby asked for all
in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Public Comment
Chair Kirby then opened the floor for public comment.

There was none.

Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes
The Board will review and consider approval of the minutes of the September 28,
2021 CIP Committee meeting.

Commissioner Cummings moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Chair Kirby asked
for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Extension Report to the People

Extension staff provide a video report of their “Annual Report to the People™. A copy of the video
presentation is in the Clerk’s digital files. A paper summary copy is in the meeting file labeled
October 18, 2021.




Purchase of 911 Console

911 Director Herman Weiss provided the Board with a contract to purchase a console for 911 to
complete the backup PSAP project with Perquimans County. Additionally, Budget Amendment
BA2022-015 is attached for consideration. He stated the only county funds to be expended for this
project would be $650. He stated the remaining funds would come from the 911 Fund and the
Grant.

Chair Kirby asked what was the source of the 911 fund.
Mr. Howard stated it is the 911 surcharges.
Chair Kirby noted these monies are fees paid by tax payers.

Chair Kirby asked about the total project cost noting that the total project cost is $329,376.37. He
stated the grant is $136,000 and the remaining is 911 fund monies.

Mr. Weiss noted that the grant only needed $136,000 but they were given $154,000. He stated
they will revise the grant to correct this.

Chair Kirby asked where the $650 will come from.
Ms. Smith stated it would come from the 911 department budget.
Commissioner Evans moved to approve the contract and the budget amendment BA022-015.

Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

.. Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
E911 Fund

24-3431-360-00 Capital Grant 136,781.62
24-3990-990-00 Fund Balance Appropriation 191,944.75
24-4325-523-00 Chowan Backup Radio Project 328,726.37

Balanced 328,726.37 328,726.37

Justification:

To amend the 2022 budget for E911 Fund to include grant and fund
balance appropriation for the backup radio project.

Former DF Walker Gym HVAC Bids
Mr. Howard presented the Board with bids to replace the HVAC units at the gym. He stated that
three bids were solicited only two were received. He stated that the low bidder advised them that




the cost would increase $3,500 per unit in November. He sated that he plans to hold off on
replacing the unit on the stage until some of the PARTF grant work is done to determine what the
needs are in the gym. He stated he is requesting that the Board approve the low bid from Comfort
Master in the amount of $65,700.

Chair Kirby asked if this project is listed in the current CIP.

Mr. Howard stated yes for 2021. He stated that $50,000 was budgeted however there are savings
from the Ag Building roof project to offset this expense in the CIP.

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to accept the low bid from Comfort Master.

Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

BB&T Financing — Ambulance Purchase

Mr. Howard provided the Board with a proposal from BB&T for financing of an ambulance. He

stated that this is for a proposed lease with BB&T for two payments to be made over two fiscal
years. He stated the payment is $113,868.71 with the first payment being made this fiscal year.

Commissioner Kehayes asked why is this a lease.

Mr. Howard stated that the LGC requires this type of financing to be called a lease purchase which
is different than a standard lease agreement.

Commissioner Cummings asked if this new truck would have the correct stretcher mount.
Mr. Howard stated yes.

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the agreement as presented. Chair Kirby asked for
all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Redistricting Map Presentation and Discussion

Mr. Howard presented the Board with the proposed maps for redistricting a copy of the maps and
data are included in the meeting file labeled October 18, 2021. He noted the Board will schedule
a public hearing to receive comments on the proposed maps. The public hearing will be held at the
November 1, 2021 meeting.

Commissioner Lawrence stated that a group reviewed the proposed maps and had questions
regarding the majority minority percentages in Districts 1, 2 and 3.

Mr. Howard stated he would be glad to meet with this group to explain the data and how these
decisions were reached. He noted that the state has to approve the maps by November 17%.

Chair Kirby stated that if a special meeting is needed, one may be scheduled.

Commissioner Kehayes moved to schedule the public hearing for November 1, 2021 at 6:00pm.
Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).



Financial Items
Finance Officer Cathy Smith presented the following:

Budget Amendments
BA-2022-013
Account Number Account Description Revenue Expense
P (Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Water Department
61-3839-892-01 NCDOT Reimbursement - Water Line Re} 164,095.00
61-7120-351-01 Water Line Repairs - Reimbursed 164,095.00
Balanced 164,095.00 164,095.00

Justification:

To amend the 2022 budget for the Water Department to include water
line repairs at Mexico Rd. The Utility Relocation Agreement has been
approved by NCDOT and expenditures will be reimbursed.

BA-2022-014
.. Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)

EMS

60-3437-850-00 Insurance Proceeds 2,925.00

60-4370-351-00 Repairs & Maint - Buildings 2,925.00

Balanced 2,925.00 2,925.00

Justification:

To amend the 2022 budget for EMS to include insurance proceeds for
repairs to the garage door.

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the budget amendments as presented. Chair Kirby
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

External Board/Committee Report
Chair Kirby asked the Board members to report on the activities of the external boards to which

they have been appointed.

Commissioner Kehayes reported on the DSS Board and potential budgetary impacts due to the
number of children in guardianship.



Chair Kirby reported on recent meetings with Congressman Murphy and an Economic
Development Summit at Elizabeth City State University the past week.

Manager’s Report
There was none.

Timely and Important Matters
Ms. Stallings noted that Board members should return the evaluations that were handed out as
soon as they are able.

Closed Session

Commissioner Cummings moved that the Board go into closed session to meet in accordance
with NCGS 143-318-11 (a) (3 and 4) attorney client and economic development. Chair Kirby
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

The minutes of the closed session are sealed.

Commissioner McLaughlin moved that the Board come out of closed session. Chair Kirby
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Adjourn
Being no further business Commissioner McLaughlin moved to adjourn the meeting. Chair
Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Bob Kirby, Chairman Susanne Stallings, Clerk



